ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND COMMUNITY SAFETY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Adult Social Care and Community Safety Scrutiny Committee held at County Hall, Lewes on 22 June 2017.

PRESENT Councillors Angharad Davies (Chair) Councillors Trevor Webb

(Vice Chair), Colin Belsey, Charles Clark, Martin Clarke and

John Ungar

LEAD MEMBERS Councillors Bill Bentley and Carl Maynard

ALSO PRESENT Councillor Colin Swansborough

Keith Hinkley, Director of Adult Social Care and Health

Samantha Williams, Assistant Director, Planning, Performance

and Engagement

Justine Armstrong, Safer Communities Manager Claire Lee, Senior Democratic Services Adviser

1 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 9 MARCH 2017

1.1 The minutes were agreed as a correct record.

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.1 Apologies were received from Cllr Sheppard (Cllr Belsey substituted) and Cllr Enever.

3 DISCLOSURES OF INTERESTS

- 3.1 Cllr Ungar declared a personal, non-prejudicial interest as Joint Chair of the Eastbourne and Lewes Community Safety Partnership.
- 3.2 Cllr Webb declared a personal, non-prejudicial interest as Chair of a Community Safety Panel in central St Leonards.
- 3.3 Cllr Clarke declared a personal, non-prejudicial interest as Trustee and Director of the Hastings Centre which hosted a community safety event mentioned in a report to the committee.

4 <u>URGENT ITEMS</u>

4.1 There were no urgent items.

5 FORWARD PLAN

5.1 The Committee RESOLVED to note the forward plan.

6 <u>ANNUAL REVIEW OF SAFER COMMUNITIES PERFORMANCE, PRIORITIES AND</u> ISSUES

- 6.1 The Head of Safer Communities introduced the report which provided an overview of community safety performance in 2016-17 and partnership priorities for 2017-18. She advised that a partnership event was planned for later in June to review and refresh priorities for future years.
- 6.2 The following points were made in response to questions from the committee:

Crime reporting

Sussex Police has advised that upward trends in some categories of crime reflect an
increase in reporting, rather than being indicative of an increase in crime. The accuracy of
figures is a question which can be taken up by the Police and Crime Panel which will be
receiving a report on changes to reporting arrangements.

Prevent programme

- The effectiveness of the Prevent programme is considered by the Prevent Board. Evidence seen by the Board suggests that interventions across schools and colleges have been very successful and these have been subject to independent evaluation.
- The partnership secured Home Office funding for the 'Think, Protect, Prevent' programme (particularly focused on children with autism) which will be fully evaluated by the end of June but has been successful in terms of people completing the programme. A small number of referrals (fewer than five in the last 12 months) have been made to the national Channel intervention programme where there were specific concerns.
- Partners are confident in the ability to identify concerns about young people through work in schools and colleges, and to make appropriate referrals to Channel.
- The Prevent programme has been reviewed in light of the Sussex Counter Terrorism Local Profile and has had positive feedback. There is an ongoing focus on vulnerable young people who may be subject to influence rather than people from a particular background or faith.
- There has been no specific new guidance on Prevent in light of recent terrorist attacks but
 the temporary increase of the threat level to critical affected the local authority response.
 After the Manchester attack the partnership proactively provided a presentation to local
 schools to help them talk about the issues as they felt appropriate.

Drug and alcohol misuse

- There has been a positive impact from introducing community detox as an alternative to the
 residential service. There is no cap on the number of people able to access the service. As
 there is a very low level of representation once people complete the programme (80% stay
 clean) most are new attenders. There is an increasing need but also the capacity to manage
 it.
- A reduction in drug paraphernalia left in public places is expected following a meeting with the pharmacy council which has now agreed to supply single needles rather than larger packs which lead to surplus needles being left unopened and abandoned.

Domestic abuse

The increase in referrals to Multi-agency Risk Assessment Conferences (MARACs) is linked
to increased staff training and they are under pressure. Work is being undertaken in
conjunction with the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) to review the capacity of
MARACs across Sussex and officers are confident that changes will be introduced from
September which may include extending meetings or changing their frequency and
identification of potential repeat cases at an earlier stage.

Modern slavery

- Officers attended a regional PCC event on modern slavery and how the issue is being
 addressed locally. East Sussex initiated a pan-Sussex network with Police and other key
 partners to look at issues including raising awareness. This will draw on resources
 developed by other parts of the country, particularly in terms of training staff at the frontline
 to recognise the signs. Further thought will be needed on how best to inform the public
 about risks and signs.
- There are specific requirements on organisations who turnover £30m or more to make a
 statement on how they employ staff and modern slavery, but businesses of concern may
 have a turnover below this scale. There are a number of 'days of action' set up for partners
 to go into premises to undertake environmental checks and Sussex Police is sharing
 quarterly data on the number of referrals to the national programme.
- It is difficult to get a clear picture of the scale of the issue in East Sussex. There is a range of different categories and there are links to serious organised crime. However, a clearer picture is beginning to emerge and referral figures are starting to increase as awareness rises. Local data is provided at Sussex Police level.
- It is recognised that sometimes people are relatively content with their situation compared to
 what they experienced in a country of origin. It is therefore necessary to think about
 supporting people over the medium to long term to avoid worsening their overall situation.
 This involves partnership work to look at all the action needed across a range of fronts to
 support people such as on housing or benefits.

Partnership priorities

• The partnership has avoided focusing on areas already being led successfully by partners and has now prioritised four key areas where the East Sussex Safer Communities Partnership is best placed to take leadership. These priorities have been based on a considerable amount of consultation and use of a new tool to identify the issues causing the most 'threat', 'harm' and 'risk'. Other work is reviewed through the partnership and themed groups to ensure there is ongoing oversight beyond the four key partnership priorities.

Hate crime

• There have been a number of spikes in hate crime related to Brexit and national incidents. The information recorded in relation to hate crimes has not changed. There is a national plan looking at how to encourage reporting and the accuracy of data has improved.

Fire Safety

- Existing plans will be reviewed in the light of the Grenfell Tower fire, identifying any
 additional steps and associated communications needed. This work sits within existing
 emergency planning and business continuity work. Emergency plans set out how agencies
 use available intelligence to identify vulnerable people.
- 6.3 The Committee RESOLVED to note the report and request a further annual update in June 2018.

7 EAST SUSSEX BETTER TOGETHER ACCOUNTABLE CARE MODEL

- 7.1 The Director of Adult Social Care and Health introduced the report. The following points were made in response to questions from the committee:
- The East Sussex Better Together (ESBT) outcomes framework was developed based on the key statutory requirements of each organisation and what local people have said is important in their lives. These elements have been drawn together into the key areas ESBT is looking to address. The pilot framework has been shared with stakeholders and a single performance system is being developed to manage and monitor it.

- The intention is to develop more detailed performance indicators against each of the
 outcomes to measure delivery. The framework is made up of a mix of indicators based on
 actual data about the delivery of services and perception indicators, which reflect
 requirements in the national NHS and Adult Social Care Outcomes Frameworks to ask
 people about felt experience. Some other measures will be subject to multi-agency case
 audit.
- The options appraisal process reflects the principles agreed by Cabinet which have been converted to a scoring framework. Representatives of all ESBT Alliance organisations will form part of a panel which will score options, aiming to achieve a consensus view. Sovereign bodies will ultimately decide on the way forward based on the panel's recommendation.
- The NHS wants and needs to transform services in a similar way to social care. Health
 services are also experiencing pressures and need to reduce demand by focusing on
 prevention. Spending more on social care can reduce demand on acute care and there are
 benefits to all by working as a whole system and looking at how the collective health and
 social care budget is spent.
- There is a need to retain democratic accountability and management of performance in any
 new governance structure. ESBT Alliance governance is currently complex due to the mix of
 old and new, but ultimately the aim is to simplify how health and social care are
 commissioned and delivered. NHS regulation also needs to adapt to new ways of working.
- Staff have been engaged through the normal engagement processes within individual organisations but additional mechanisms have been added specifically in relation to ESBT issues such as the changes to service models.
- Staff are aware of potentially large scale change and if there is organisational change the
 usual policies will apply. Staff have already experienced significant change due to the
 service changes implemented to date through ESBT.
- Following the options appraisal process there will be a public report to Cabinet in July setting out the proposed way forward. This will be followed by a further round of staff engagement to explain the next steps.
- The ESBT Scrutiny Board has enabled scrutiny at each stage of the process and this will
 continue. Further thought would be needed as to how scrutiny would operate in a full
 accountable care system.
- 7.2 RESOLVED to note the report.

8 SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FUTURE WORK PROGRAMME

8.1 RESOLVED:

- 1. To nominate Cllrs Davies, Webb and Clarke as the committee's representatives on the East Sussex Better Together and Connecting 4 You Scrutiny Boards.
- 2. To add the following items to the work programme:

14 September:

- Safeguarding report to include the issue of paid carers and safeguarding
- Market capacity report home care and nursing care homes

16 November:

- Mental health overview of community services (covering support to the homeless)
- Services to prisons (post Care Act)

15 March:

• Health and Social Care Connect update report

The meeting ended at 12.45 pm.

Councillor Angharad Davies Chair